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SHECHTMAN, MARKS, DEVOR

& ETSKOVITZ, P.C.
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

Report of independent certified public accountants

Board of Directors and Officers
Resources for Human Development, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated statements of financial position of Resources for
Human Development, Inc. and subsidiaries (RHD) as of June 30, 2003 and 2002, and the related
consolidated statements of unrestricted revenues, expenditures and other changes in unrestricted net
assets, changes in net assets, functional expenditures and cash flows for the years then ended. These
financial statements are the responsibility of RHD’s management. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contamed in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we
plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are
free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting
principles used and the significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
consolidated financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for
our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the consolidated financial position of Resources for Human Development, Inc. and
subsidiaries as of June 30, 2003 and 2002, and the consolidated changes in their net assets and their

cash flows for the years then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also 1ssued our report dated January 19,
2004, on our consideration of the Organization's internal control over financial reporting and our tests
of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grants. That report is an
integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be
read in conjunction with this report in considering the results of our audits,

ek inan sk Don 7 Febrwits, NC

Philadelphia, PA
January 19, 2004

5000 MARKET STREET » SUITE 500 = PHILADELPHIA, PA 19103 » PHONE: 215-496-9200 » FAX: 215-496-9604



RESOURCES FOR HUMAN DEVELOPMENT, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
JUNE 30, 2003 AND 2002

ASSETS

Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Limited use cash, representative
payee cash funds

Grants and services receivable, net of allowance for doubtful
accounts of $857.074 for 2003 and $758,442 for 2002

Inventory

Prepaid expenses

Total current assets
Property and equipment, net

Other assets:
Equity investments in companies, net of valuation allowances

of $1,010,802 for 2003 and $756,284 for 2002

Advances and loans to investees, net of allowance for uncollectible
advances and loans of $737,125 for 2003 and $741,093 for 2002

Other

Total assets

2003

$ 4,671,115

387,844

5,058,959

12,580,750

1,965,564

300,836

19,906,109

16,234,622

2,165,340

627,276
137,412

2,930,028

$ 39,070,759

2002

$ 3,387,051

297,068
3,684,119

12,823,743
1,888,128
263,948

18,659,938

17,620,302

786,191

669,621
138,285

1,594,097

$ 37874337




¢
2003 2002
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
@
Current liabilities:
Lines of credit and short term borrowings $ 1,610,186 $ 1,254.664
Current portion of long-term debt 220,088 363,411
Current portion of obligations under capital leases 294,510 316,740
* Accounts payable and accrued expenses 9,126,126 9,959,370
Deferred revenue, current 2,819,122 2,217,222
Due to custodial chients 387,844 297,068
® Total current liabilities 14,457 876 14,408,475
Long-term debt, net of current portion 10,577,121 10,094,821
Obligations under capital leases, net of current portion 374,033 606,522
Long-term commitments 1,211,796 -
Deferred revenue, long term 813,492 341,488
¢ Deferred credits ] 332,055 386,866
Total liabilities 27,766,373 25,838,172
o Minority interests . 1,137,736 1,284,377
Net assets:
Unrestricted 4,638,543 5,092,818
Temporarily restricted 5,528,107 5,658,970
. Total net assets 10,166,650 10,751,788
Total liabilities and net assets $ 39,070,759 $ 37,874,337
B
b
See notes to financial statements.
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RESOURCES FOR HUMAN DEVELOPMENT, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF UNRESTRICTED REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND OTHER CHANGES IN UNRESTRICTED NET ASSETS

YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2003 AND 2002

2003 2002
Support, revenue and other:
Support:
Federal ' $ 3,366,715 $ 2,781,027
Various states 17,172,960 17,737,486
City of Philadelphia, PA 34,378,807 31,644,555
Montgomery County, PA 9,299,398 9,219,796
Other PA counties 8,111,172 8,844,716
Medical assistance/managed care 8,930,163 10,553,771
Grants and donations 1,138,732 974,710
Total unrestricted support 82,397,947 81,756,071
Revenue:
Patient/client fees 8,618,635 7,827,368
Other fees and sales 4,351,669 3,918,303
Interest and miscellaneous income 501,832 523,087
Total unrestricted revenue 13,472,136 12,268,758
Net assets released from temporary restrictions 1,959,302 1,930,067
Total unrestricted support, revenue and other 07,829,385 95,954,896
Expenditures:
Program 83,412,699 81,984,643
Management and general 12,670,832 12.,265,467
Fundraising 157,004 44.4K)
Other operating 1,553,240 990,205
Total expenditures 97,793,772_ _ 05,284,805
Equity in net losses of investments (636,526) (281,038)
. Changes in unrestricted net assets before
minority interests and other adjustments (600,916) 389,053
Minority interests in net losses of investments 146,641 65,645
Changes in unrestricted net assets before other adjustments $  (454,275) $ 454,698

See notes to financial statements.
7




RESOURCES FOR HUMAN DEVELOPMENT, INC.,
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

¢ YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2003 AND 2002
2003 2002
&
Unrestricted net assets:
Total unrestricted support and revenue $ 95,870,083 $ 94,024,829
Net assets released from restrictions 1,959,302 1,930,067
Total expenditures (97,793,775) (95,284,803)
@ Equity in net losses of investments (636,526) (281,038)
Minority interests in net losses of investments 146,641 65,645
(454,2°715) 454,698
Allocation from minority interest - 167,190
e Changes in unrestricted net assets (454,273) 621,888
Temporanly restricted net assets:
Contributions 1,828,439 3,361,516
e Net assets released from restrictions (1,959,302) (1,930,067)
Changes in temporarily restricted net assets ) (130,863) 1,431,449
Change in total net assets (585,138) 2,053,337
® Total net assets at beginning of year 10,751,788 8,698,451
Total net assets at end of year - $ 10,166,650 $ 10,751,788
¢
o
®
See notes to financial statements.
¢ 8
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RESOURCES FOR HUMAN DEVELOPMENT, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2003 AND 2002

Cash flows from operating activities:

Change in total net assets

Adjustments to reconcile change in total net assets

to net cash provided by operating activities:
Allocation from and other changes in minority interests
Loss on disposition of property and equipment
Loss on abandoment of capitalized computer software
Increase (decrease) in allowance for doubtful accounts

and uncollectible advances and loans

Depreciation and amortization
Equity in net losses of investments
Deferred credit forgiveness
Decrease in grants and services receivable
(Increase)} decrease in inventory
Increase 1n prepaid expenses
Decrease (increase) in other assets
(Decrease) increase in accounts payable and accrued expenses
Increase in long-term commitments
Increase in deferred revenue

Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities:
Increase 1n investments in companties
Acquisitions of property and equipment
Net repayment of advances and loans to investees
Distributions from investments
Proceeds from sale of property and equipment
Capital contributions from minority interests

Net cash flows used in investing activifies

Cash flows from financing activities:
Net proceeds (payments) on iines of credit and short term
borrowings
Principal payments on long-term debt and capital
lease obligations
Principal borrowings of long-term debt

Net cash provided by {(used in) financing activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning
Conschidation adjustment

Cash and cash equivalents, ending

See notes to financial statements.
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2003

(585,138)

(146,641)
136,150

349,182
2,363,937
636,526
(54,811)
144,361
(77,436)
(36,888)
32
(833,244)
1,211,796
1,239,686

4,347,512

(2,435,437)
(1,197,306)

46,413
663,493

2002

2,053,337

(232,835)
§5.950
338,166

(90,937)
2,300,973
281,038
(54,811)
926,643
184,464
(43,463)
(1,765)
453,248

292,357

6,492,374

(346,038)

(2,128,375)
240,147
114,798

65,958
4,743

(2,920,837)

355,522

(497,704)
500,000

357,818

1,784,493

3,387,051
(500,429)

(2,048,767)

(2,227,240)

(512,483)

(2,739,725)

$

4,671,115

$

1,703,882

1,683,169

3,387,051



RESOURCES FOR HUMAN DEVELOPMENT, INC.,
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2003 AND 2002

@
2003 2002
Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information: |
o ~ Cash paid for interest $ 773,825 5 789,815
Supplemental disclosure noncash financing and investing activities
Debt, capital lease obligations, and deferred liabilifies
incurtred for the acquisition of property and equipment $ 82,042 $ 381,563
Disposal of assets and related debt $ 165,782 S 363,350

See notes to financial statements.
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RESOURCES FOR HUMAN DEVELOPMENT, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2003 AND 2002

Summary of significant accounting policies
Nature of activities

Resources for Human Development, Inc. (the Organization) is a not-for-profit organization
which operates programs nationwide, but primarily throughout the eastern United States. These
programs include mental health, mental retardation, homeless, drug and alcohol, community
living arrangements, affordable housing and probation and parole services. In addition,
through its for-profit subsidiaries, the Organization operates programs primarily designed to
lend and invest capital in businesses which are located in and employ people from economically
challenged areas,

Basis of presentation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Organization
and its for-profit subsidiaries, Murex Corporation (Murex) 100% owned by the Organization,
and Murex Investments, Inc. (Murex Investments) 93% owned by the Organization. The
consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the audit guide
published by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants, Audit and Accounting
Guide for Not-for-Profit Organizations, as required for Voluntary Health and Welfare
Organizations. Intercompany investments, advances and transactions have been eliminated.

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States require not-for-profit
organizations to distinguish between contributions received that increase permanently restricted
net assets, temporarily restricted net assets and unrestricted net assets.

Donated services, mostly consulting services for various programs, are required to be reported
at their fair market value in the year that the services are contributed or promised to be
contributed. The Organization records in-kind income and expenses for reporting to its funding
sources in accordance with the associated contract requirements. These reporting requirements
differ from generally accepted accounting principles. Accordingly, only a portion of the
amounts reported to funding sources have been recorded as donated services in the
accompanying consolidated financial statements.

Contracts and grants

Revenue from government contracts and grants, including overhead allowance, is generally
recognized as the related expenses are incurred. The Organization has significant contracts and
grants with various agencies of the federal and state governments, departments of the City of
Philadelphia, and various counties in southeastern and eastern Pennsylvania.
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RESOURCES FOR HUMAN DEVELOPMENT, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2003 AND 2002

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Net assets

Net assets are categorized according to externally (donor) imposed restrictions. A description
of the net asset categories is as follows:

Unrestricted Net Assets - are those assets that are available for the support of
operations and whose use is not externally restricted.

Temporarily Restricted Net Assets — are those assets whose use by the Organization has
been limited by donors to a specific time period or purpose.

Concentrations of credit risk

Financial instruments that potentially subject the Organization to concentrations of credit risk
consist principally of temporary cash investments and receivables from governmental and other
agencies. The receivables from governmental agencies are primarily obligations of the federal
and state governments, the City of Philadelphia and various counties in Pennsylvania. In
addition, there are accounts receivable from third party managed care organizations that
reimburse the Organization on behalf of governmental agencies, principally the City of
Philadelphia.

Limited use cash

Representative payee cash funds are custodial funds that have been established to account for
assets received by the Organization on behalf of certain clients of certain programs. These
funds are expended at the discretion of the program directors, for the direct benefit of the
individual clients.

Property and equipment and depreciation and amortization

Property and equipment are recorded at cost. Provisions for depreciation and amortization are
made over the estimated useful lives, ranging from 3 to 25 years, of the respective assets using
the straight-line method. Maintenance and repairs are charged to activities as incurred. A
substantital portion of capital assets has been purchased through grants and contracts. Such
amounts received are included in support and revenue. Related expenditures are capitalized and
depreciated over estimated hives when fitle to the related assets is held by the Organization.
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RESOURCES FOR HUMAN DEVELOPMENT, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2003 AND 2002

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Property and equipment and depreciation and amortization (continued)

Under certain program-funded agreements, ownership of property and equipment acquired with
grantor funds is vested with and may revert back to the grantor under certain circumstances.
However, due to the nature of the programs and the long term relationships of the Organization
with the grantors, management feels that the financial statements of the Orgamization are more
complete by capitalizing these assets.

Investments

Investments in partnerships, limited liability companies and unconsolidated corporations are
included in the accompanying consolidated financial statements using the equity method of
accounting.

Cash and cash equivalents

For purposes of the consolidated statement of cash flows, the Organization considers cash on
hand, deposits with banks and short-term investments with original maturities of three months
or less to be cash and cash equivalents.

Inventory

Inventory is recorded at the lower of cost, on a specific identification basis, or market (net
realizable value) and consists primarily of residential properties purchased for resale and related
construction-in-progress. Through various programs, the Organization purchases, renovates
and sells homes, primarily to eligible low-income families. |

Capitalized computer software costs

Accounting principles generally accepted in the Umted States of America require the
capitalization of certain costs incurred in connection with developing internal use software and
software for resale. Prior to the adoption of this principle in 2000, the Organization expensed
all costs related to software development as incurred. The Organization had capitalized
approximately $394,000 of computer software costs and amortized approximately $56,000 as of
June 30, 2001. During the year ended June 30, 2002, management decided to terminate its
program of developing software for resale. Instead, management decided to develop software
for its internal use only. Therefore, the Organization wrote off all capitalized software related
to development for resale and capitalized $100,000 for the cost of the software developed for
internal use.
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RESOURCES FOR HUMAN DEVELOPMENT, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2003 AND 2002

1. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Pension plan

® The Organization maintains a noncontributory, variable annuity "403(b)"” plan for the benefit
of all full-time eligible employees. Each employee is fully vested immediately upon entry into
the plan. Employee participation is veluntary and contributions by the employees are pursuant
to salary reduction. The Organization does not match employee contributions.

@ Deferred compensation plan

The Organization has implemented a non-qualified deferred compensation plan in accordance
with Internal Revenue Service Code Section 457. In order to receive a payment under this
plan, an employee must have both worked full-time for the Organization for 25 years and have

® attained the age of 65. The benefit amount is equal to the annual salary of the employee in the
year they reach 25 years of service. It will be paid to the employee in four annual installments
beginning in the year the employee attains both criteria. At June 30, 2003 and 2002, the
estimated present value of the future benefits are $138,899 and $93,388 respectively, and have
been included 1n accrued expenses.

@ Tax status

The Organization 1s exempt from federal, state and local income taxes under Section 501(¢)(3)
of the Internal Revenue Code and similar state and local laws, therefore, no provision for
income taxes has been made in the accompanying consolidated financial statements. Murex,
® and Murex Investments, for-profit corporations, are subject to tederal, state and local taxation.

Use of estimates

In preparing financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles in
the United States of America, management is required to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements, and the reported amounts of
revenues and expenditures during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those
estimates.

@ Financial instruments

Generally accepted accounting principles require entities to disclose the estimated fair value of

their financial instrument assets and liabilities. The Organization has 1dentified the following as

financial instruments, all of which have carrying values which approximate fair value: cash and
Py cash equivalents, investments in and advances to partnerships and long-term debt.




RESOURCES FOR HUMAN DEVELOPMENT, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2003 AND 2002

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Deferred revenue

Deferred revenue consists primarily of program revenues received but not earned. These
revenues will be earned as the program conditions are met.

In addition, the Organization receives grants to subsidize the construction and rehabilitation of
homes under the affordable housing programs. Revenue from these grants is deferred until the
homes are sold. At the time of the sale of a home, the portion of the deferred revenue related to
the sold home is recognized as revenue in the statement of activities,

Minority interests

Minority interests reflect the equity of a subsidiary which is not held by the Organization or its
subsidiaries.

Restatements

The June 30, 2002 amounts have been restated to include entities not previonsly consolidated
into Murex. As explained in Note 3 “Equity investments in companies and minority interests”,
Murex has control over these entities but not a majority interest.

During the year ended June 30, 2003, a company previously wholly owned by Murex
Investments issued shares to new investors. This transaction changed the nature of the
accounting for that investment from a consolidated entity to an 1investment accounted for under
the equity method. For the year ended June 30, 2002, the accounts of the wholly owned
subsidiary were included in the accounts presented in the consolidated financial statements.
The only asset owned by that investment, as of June 30, 2002, was cash. Accordingly, in order
to reflect the current ownership status at June 30, 2003, a reclassifying consolidation adjustment
has been noted on the cash flow statement reflecting a decrease in cash and an increase in
mvestment 11 this entity.

Reclassifications:

Certain amounts in the 2002 financial statements have been reclassified to conform with the
2003 financial statement presentation.
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®
RESOURCES FOR HUMAN DEVELOPMENT, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2003 AND 2002
® 2. Property and equipment
The following is a summary of property and equipment (at cost) and accumulated depreciation
and amortization:
2003 2002
o Real estate and improvements | $ 18,475,764 $ 18,385,576
Leasehold improvements 3.439. 903 3,374,306
Furniture and fixcures 1,790,792 1,978,903
Computer equipment 2,145,327 2,314,366
Automobiles 3,880,677 3,674,235
P 29,732,463 29,727,386
Less accumulated depreciation
and amortization 13,497,841 12,107,084
Property and equipment, net $ 16,234,622 $ 17,620,302
@ Depreciation and amortization expense for the year:
2003 2002
Program $ 1,519,575 $ 1,504,578
Management and general 653,161 606,155
& Other operating 191,201 190,240
$ _2.363.937 $ 2,300,973
Equipment purchased through grants and contracts amounted to $794,968 and $1,830,400 for
o the years ended June 30, 2003 and 2002, respectively.
3. Equity investments in companies and minority interests
The Organization has investments in the following companies through its for profit subsidiaries,
Murex and Murex Investments:
"
Company name Percentage of ownership
City Sort, LP* 12.30%
Computer Systems and Solutions, Inc. 30.00
CSS Laptop, Inc. 30.00
® CSS Staffing, Inc. 30.00
Laser Laboratories, LL.C* 43.33
Murex Capital, LP* 27.30
Murex Investments I, LP* 65.45
Murex Investments, LLC* 20.00
¢ Phoenix Foods, LLC* 9.00
Sun & Earth, Inc.* 9.27
Urban Works, LL.C/The Service Works Co.* 20.90
Other miscellaneous investments .01-1.00




RESOURCES FOR HUMAN DEVELOPMENT, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2003 AND 2002

Equity investments in companies and minority interests (continued)

Aggregate cost and carrying values of the investments are as follows:

2003 2002
Original investments \) 4,189,800 $ 1,900,000
Accumulated allocated earnings (losses),
net of dividends ( 1,017,764 ) ( 363,754 )
3,172,036 1,536,246
Valuation allowances* ( 1,010,802 ) (__ 756,284 )
2,161,234 779,962
Other misce]lanenus investments 4,106 6,229
Equity investments in companies, net $ 2,165,340 $ 786,191

* Over the past several years, the Organization has received restricted grants and donations
for the purpose of investing in companies through Murex Investments, to promote
economic and job development in specified areas in Pennsylvania. These companies are
typically considered risky based on their current financial position and inability to receive
additional financing from their banks. The valuation allowances pertain to these
investments.

The Organization has elected to record all of its investments using the equity method, even
those in which they own less than 20%. In most cases, the Organization exercises significant
influence and in those investments in which it owns less than 20%, the equity method
approximates the cost method. The Organization’s losses are limited to the extent of their
capital contributions.

The minority interest in the QOrganization’s subsidiary, Murex Investments, consists of a 7
percent and & percent non-voting common stock ownership by another investor as of June 30,
2003 and 2002, respectively. During the year ended June 30, 2001, the other investor invested
$300,000 in Murex Investments. As a result of the investment, losses of the entity were
partially allocated to the new investor. Accordingly, the Organization recognized an increase in
its net assets of approximately $167,000 at June 30, 2002. The Organization owns all of the
voting equity of the subsidiary both before and after the transaction.

There are three investments in Murex which have minority interests. In two of these
investments, Murex has control of the company but not a majority ownership. Control results
from the Organization’s appointment of management or members of the board of directors.
The minority interests own 99% and 99.9% of the equity of the companies. In the third

investment, Murex is both a majority owner and has significant control.
24




®
RESOURCES FOR HUMAN DEVELOPMENT, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
® YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2003 AND 2002

4, Advances and loans to investees and related party transactions

The Organization through its for-profit subsidiaries, Murex and Murex Investments, has made
® loans and advances with certain partnerships and companies. In addition, the Organization,
through its subsidiary, Murex Investments, has made loans to certain companies with which it
has an equity interest. Murex Investments invests in certain companies located in distressed
areas of Philadeiphia, Pennsylvania. It requires all of its investees to adhere to certain
principles, including a minimum level of hiring local people from welfare, a minimum wage in
excess of the federal minimum wage, and the sharing of profits with the employees. The source
of funds for investing and lending to these companies is a grant from the Shefa Fund. The
investments in these companies are accounted for using the equity method of accounting. The
nature of the significant loans are as follows:

2003 2002

Various advances to affiliated entities with
which the Organization has an ownership
interest or control. These advances have
no repayment terms. $ 544,231 $ 558,589

¢ Note recelvable to a company which bears
interest at a rate of 1% over prime rate,
5% and 5.75% at June 30, 2003 and 2002,
respectively. The balance was due on
March 5, 2003. 137,353 137,355

Note recetvable to a company which bears
interest at 1% over prime rate, 5% and 5.75%
at June 30, 2003 and 2002, respectively. This
note 1s due on demand. 599,770 599 770

Note receivable to three partnerships which

Murex 1s a partner. The note bears interest at

1% over prime rate, 5% and 5.75% at June 30,

2003 and 2002, respectively, and is due on demand. 55,000 65,000

» Note receivable to a company which Murex Investments
owns a 25.96% interest. The note bears interest at 8%
and was due June 20, 2003. This receivable was
converted to an equity investment in December, 2002. - 50,000
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RESOURCES FOR HUMAN DEVELOPMENT, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

® YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2003 AND 2002
4, Advances and loans to investees and related party transactions (continued)
2003 2002
®
Various advances to companies, payable on
demand and bearing an 8% interest rate. 28,045 -
1,364,401 1,410,714

® Less allowance for uncollectible advances ( 737,125 ) ( 741,093 )

$ 627,276 $ 609,621

In addition, the Organizatioh purchases vehicles from a wholly-owned subsidiary. The
$ intercompany sales were $280,550 and $311,613 for the years ended June 30, 2003 and 2002,
respectively.

. Lines of credit and short term borrowings

The Organization has lines of credit and short term borrowings as follows:

2003 2002
Line of credit of $1,500,000 with a bank.
Interest on borrowings under this agreement
is based on the Federal funds rate plus 1%.
® At June 30, 2003 and 2002, the effective rate was
3.75% and 4.25%, respectively. It is collateralized
by accounts receivable, inventory, furniture
and fixtures and machinery. The line expires
on April 30, 2004, $ 772,705 % 825,711

Notes payable, CLI, interest at 8.0% t0 9.3%,

collateralized by inventory; due at the end
of the related project. 337,481 428,953

, Line of credit of $8,000,000 with another

® bank. Interest under this agreement is at
the bank’s prime rate which was 4% at June
30, 2003. It is collateralized by accounts

receivable. The line expires on April 30, 2004. 500,000 -

® $ _1.610,186 $  1,254.664

In addition, the Orgamzation is obligated under outstanding letters of credit of $1,200,000 and
$1,300,000 at June 30, 2003 and 2002, respectively.
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RESOURCES FOR HUMAN DEVELOPMENT, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2003 AND 2002

Long-term debt:

Mortgage notes, payable in monthly instaliments
ranging from $0 to $4,313, most mcluding interest
ranging from 4.5% t0 9.75%, collateralized by
various properties, maturing at various times from
July, 2002 through August, 2030. $ 4,867,953

Mortgage notes, payable in monthly installments
ranging from $0 to $21,841, mostly including interest
ranging from 1% to 7.1%, collateralized by rental
property and equipment, maturing at various times
from June, 2027 through December, 2028. 4,527,522

Mortgage notes, payable in monthly installments
ranging from $0 to $4,428, mostly including interest
ranging from 1% to 10.5%, collateralized by the
income producing assets, maturing at various times

from year 2021 through 2035. 754,285

Note payable, interest due semi-annually based
on interest income received related to mvestment

of these proceeds. 500,000

Notes payable, due in monthly installments of $1,824
including interest at 7.5 %, uncollateralized,

maturing July 2012. 147,449
10,797,209

Less current portion 220,088
Long-term portion $ _10.577.121
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$

4,986,822

4,566,950

750,706

153,754

10,458,232

363,411

10,094,821




RESOURCES FOR HUMAN DEVELOPMENT, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2003 AND 2002

Long-term debt (continued)
Maturities of long-term debt over the next five years and thereafter are as follows:

Year ending June 30,
2004 N}
2005
2006
2007
2008
Thereafter

$

220,088
173,164
179,107
186,016
293,724
9,745,110

10,797,209

Interest expense for the years ended June 30, 2003 and 2002 was $773,825 and $789,815,

respectively.

Deferred credits

The Organization has received grants/loans from various governmental agencies for
acquiring and/or rehabilitating properties for specified purposes. If the conditions of each
grant/loan agreement are met, these balances will be forgiven over periods ranging from
10 to 20 years. The grants/loans bear no interest except in the event of default. No
interest has been accrued because it is the intention of the Organization to comply with

all related conditions. The deferred credit balances are as follows:

~ 2003
City of Philadelpa - Office of Housing and

Community Development (originated June

1990 in the amount of $150,000 to be forgiven

at the rate of 5% per year through June 2010) $ 52,500 $

City of Philadelphia - Office of Housing and
Community Development (originated June
1991 in the amount of $150,000 to be forgiven
at the rate of 10% per year after the initial
10-year period) 120,000

Federal Home Loan Bank (originated June 1993
in the amount of $70,000 to be forgiven at the
rate of 6.667 % per year over a 15-year period

ending June 2007) 21,463
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2002

60,000

135,000

26,130




RESOURCES FOR HUMAN DEVELOPMENT, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2003 AND 2002

7. Deferred credits (continued)
2003

Montgomery County Home Rehab Program
(originated April 1995 in the amount of $35,251
to be forgiven at the rate of 10% per year
through April, 2005) 7,051

Montgomery County Home Program (originated
@ June 1996 in the amount of $68,333 to be

forgiven in July, 2011) 68,333

Montgomery County Home Program (originated
September 1988 in the amount of $83,690 to be
@ forgiven at the rate of 10% per year after the initial
10-year period) 39,083

City of Philadelphia Redevelopment Authority
(originated November 1994 in the amount of
$157,500 to be forgiven at the rate of 10% per
@ year through November 2004) 23,625

$ _332,055

2002

10,576

68,333

47,452

39,375

$ __ 386,866

During the year ending June 30, 2004, it is anticipated that $54,811 of deferred credits will be

¢ forgiven.

8. Lease commitents

The Organization leases various buildings and equipment under leasing arrangements expiring
o through the year 2014, These leases are accounted for as operating leases. Generally, leases
with terms beyond one year contain defunding clauses which allow the Organization to
terminate a lease, within 90 days of the loss of government funding. Future minimum annual

rentals under lease arrangements at June 30, 2003 are as follows:

& Year ending June 30,
2004 $ 4,030,035
2005 2.250,898
2006 1,049,901
2007 453,002
2008 243,160

¢ Thereaftes 195,655
Total $ _8.224,651
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RESOURCES FOR HUMAN DEVELOPMENT, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2003 AND 2002

Lease commitments (continued)

The Organization also maintains numerous leases with terms of one year or less which are not

included in the above schedule. Rent expense for the years ended June 30, 2003 and 2002
aggregated $6,147,996 and $6,007,172, respectively,

Capital lease obligations

The Company leases numerous automobiles under noncancellable capital leases. As a result,
$1,951,518 and $1,918,982 of leased assets and $668,542 and $939,092 of related accumulated
depreciation have been included in property and equipment as of June 30, 2003 and 2002,
respectively.  The leases have imputed interest rates ranging between 6.0% and 15% per
annum. Future minimum lease payments are as follows:

Year ending June 30,

2004 $ 342,267
2005 248,549
2006 120,762
2007 28,027
2008 7,803
Minimum lease payments 747,408
Less amount representing interest 78,865
Present value of minimum lease payments 668,543
Current portion 294,510
Long-term portion $ 374,033

Self-insurance

By permission of the Pennsylvania Bureau of Workers’ Compensation, the Organization
maintains a self-insurance program for workers’ compensation for its employees working in
Pennsylvania. In addition, the Organization is also self-insured for automobile, general liability
and property coverage for the years ended June 30, 2003 and 2002. Excess insurance policies
are maintained with respect to the various self-insurance plans, and claims are handled by third-
party administrators. Included 1n accounts payable and accrued expenses at June 30, 2003 and
2002 is $1,105,331 and $1,726,408, respectively, for future claims for all self-insurance
coverage, which represents an estimate by' management. The ulttmate cost, however, will
depend on the extent of future claims.
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RESOURCES FOR HUMAN DEVELOPMENT, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2003 AND 2002

Revenues - various states
A breakdown of funding from various states is as follows:

Years ended June 30,

2003 2002

Connecticut $ 2,448,739 $ 2,511,256
Delaware 448,684 107,502
Florida 5,615,932 4,618,719
Louisiana 2,648,943 2,848 638
Massachusetts 4,325,701 4,698,422
New Jersey 013,143 1,497,805
Pennsylvania 1,171,818 1,455,154

Total $ _17.172.960 $ 17,737,496

Concentrations of credit risk

Programs operated by the Organization are primarily funded by various governmental agencies.
The ability of the Organization to maintain its overhead structure and meet future financial
commitments is dependent on the continued funding of these programs.

The Organization maintains cash balances at financial institutions located in various states.
Accounts at an institution may, at times, exceed the Federally insured limits of $100,000. As
of June 30, 2003, approximately $4,372,000 exceeded insured limits.

Other commitments and contingencies:

Litigation

The Organization is currently defending itself i several ongoing lawsuits. All estimated costs

relating to these actions have been included in accrued expenses or are covered under existing
insurance policies.
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RESOURCES FOR HUMAN DEVELOPMENT, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2003 AND 2002

Other commitments and contingencies (continued)

Guarantee commitment

The Organization has applied the disclosure provisions of FASB Interpretation No. 45 (FIN
45), “Guarantor’s Accounting and Disclosure Requirements for Guarantees, Including Indirect
Guarantees of Indebtedness of Others”, to its agreements that contain guarantee clauses. These
disclosure provisions expand those required by FASB Statement No. 5, “Accounting for
Contingencies”, by requiring a guarantor to disclose certain types of guarantees, even if the
likelihood of requiring the guarantor’s performance is remote. FIN 45 requires the
Organization to record the guarantee commitments as liabilities in the statement of financial
position, starting with guarantees entered into after December 31, 2002, rather than simply
disclosing the guarantee commitments in the financial statement footnotes. The following is a
description of arrangements in which the Organization is the guarantor.

The Organization has guaranteed that there will be funds available in an entity partially owned
by the Organization over the next ten years to match similar amounts provided by the Small
Business Administration (SBA). The entity will use these funds for technical assistance in its
investment program. If the entity cannot generate funds equal to the funds provided by the
SBA for paying its technical assistance costs, then the Organization must provide the funds. At
June 30, 2003, the Organization has received restricted contributions and grants available to
fund this project, if necessary. The present value of the liability at June 30, 2003 is
$1,276,796. The current portion of this liability is $165,000 and is reported as part of accrued
expenses at June 30, 2003, with the remaining balance reported as a long-term commitment in
the statement of financial position.

Murex Investments 1s also a guarantor of a $100,000 loan obtained by another company in
which it 1s an investor. The total liability of $100,000 is included in long-term commitments in
the statement of financial position at June 30, 2003.

Capital commitment

On March 31, 2003, Murex Investments committed to invest $3,600,000 in a limited
partnership whose purpose is to invest in a diversified portfolio of companies located primarily
in economically distressed areas. The commitment is funded based on capital calls made by the
general partner of the partnership and must be funded by March 31, 2009. As of June 30,
2003, approximately $360,000 had been funded.

Subsequent event

On September 30, 2003, Murex Investments funded an additional $360,000 of its $3,600,000
capital commitment in a limited partnership. On December 29, 2003, Murex Investments
assigned $1,000,000 of its $3,600,000 capital commitment with approval of the limited
partnership and its primary lender to another investor, resulting in a remaining capital
commitment of $2,080,000 in the limited partnership. As a result, Murex Investments was
reimbursed $200,000 of excess capital contributions and its ownership decreased from 65% to
47%. |
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SHECHTMAN, MARKS, DEVOR

& ETSKOVITL, P.C.
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

&
REPORT OF INDEPENDENT CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS ON
OTHER SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION
®
- Board of Directors and Officers |
Resources for Human Development, Inc.
o |

Our audits were performed for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic consolidated financial
statements of the Organization taken as a whole. The accompanying other supplemental information on
pages 34 through 70 is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the
basic consolidated financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures

@ applied in the audits of the basic consolidated financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated,
1n all material respects, in relation to the basic consolidated financial statements taken as a whole.

3 WMM#W/ K

Philadelphia, PA
January 19, 2004
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RESOURCES FOR HUMAN DEVELOPMENT, INC.

OFFICE OF MENTAL HEALTH/MENTAL RETARDATION
SCHEDULE OF ADJUSTMENTS ON PROGRAM ACTIVITY INVOICE SUMMARY
CONTRACT NO. 03-20019
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2003

Code nos. 0200-1637, 0202-0942, 0260-1143, 0260-1150, 0260-1200, 0260-1300, 0260-16135,
0260-1617, 0260-1637, 0260-1642, 0260-1696, 0261-1615sic95, 0261-1150st.ctr(3,
0261-1696st.ctr(02, 0261-1150s¢99, 0261-1300sc99, and 0261-16155¢99.

There were no adjustments to the Program Activity Invoice Summary.,
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RESOURCES FOR HUMAN DEVELOPMENT, INC.
OFFICE OF MENTAL HEALTH/MENTAL RETARDATION

& SCHEDULE OF ADJUSTMENTS ON PROGRAM ACTIVITY INVOICE SUMMARY
CONTRACT NO. 99-20266-03
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2003

@

® Code nos. 01-00-1400, 01-00-1493, 01-00-1602, 01-00-1612, 01-00-1613, 01-00-1615, 00-

00-1616, 01-00-1618, 01-00-1619, 01-00-1621, 01-00-1695, 01-00-1696, 01-00-
2218, 01-02-1616, 01-02-1695, 01-04-1615, 01-05-1615, 01-06-1696, 01-07-

1612, 01-07-1620, 01-08-1622, 01-40-1433, 01-40-1619, 01-40-1626, 01-40-
1695, and 01-82-1526.

There were no adjustments to the Program Activity Invoice Summary.
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Total contract:

Less:
Funds drawn down - prior fiscal year

Funds drawn down - current year
Total funds drawn down

Funds still availabie for draw down

Total funds drawn down

Add:
Program income

Total funds received

Less:
Program income expended
Funds applied - prior fiscal year
Funds applied - current fiscal year

Total funds applied

Total funds due from funding source

Total funds available for disposition

RESOURCES FOR HUMAN DEVELOPMENT, INC.
OFFICE OF HOUSING AND COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT
SCHEDULE OF SOURCE AND STATUS OF FUNDS

CONTRACT NO. 03-20392

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2003
CDBG HOME Other city Noncity
___ funds Income funds funds Total

5 03,233 N 217,200 b 151,992 $ $ 462,425
093,193 211,878 146,791 451,862
93,193 211,878 146,791 451,862

$ 40 3 5,322 h 5,201 5 B 10,563

h) 93,193 3 211,878 3 146,791 h . 451,862
93,193 211,878 146,791 451,862
93,193 211,878 146,791 451,862
93,193 211,878 146,791 451,862

& - h - ) - - $ -

$ 4(} $ 5,322 3 3,201 $ N 10,563
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RESOURCES FOR HUMAN DEVELOPMENT
OFFICE OF HOUSING AND COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT
SCHEDULE OF PROGRAM INCOME
CONTRACT NO. 03-20392
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2003

Program income (cumulative through June 30, 2001)
Less program income expended in prior years
Beginning balance, July 1, 2002

Add program income received in current fiscal year

Less program income expended 1n current fiscal year

Ending balance, June 30, 2003

Sale

Eroceeds

$

47

Rent
collected

Total
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RESOURCES FOR HUMAN DEVELOPMENT, INC.
COORDINATING OFFICE FOR DRUG AND ALCOHOL ABUSE PROGRAMS
@ SCHEDULE OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENDITURES

BY CONTRACT/PROGRAM AND REVENUES BY FUNDING SOURCE
CONTRACT NO. 03-20004 '
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2003

®
@
Expenditures by cost center:
Total personnel services
Total operating expenses
@ Total fixed asests
Total expenditures by cost center
@ Funding sources:
Client fees
City of Philadelphia, Coordinating
Office for Drug and Alcohol Abuse
Other
@
Total funding sources
Excess of expenditures over
funding sources
PR g
@
@

New Start
Contract No.
03-20004

52,000

52,000

52,000

Endow-a-Home

$

Qutpatient Services
Contract No.
03-20004

47,128

15,702

52,000

51

62,830

62,830

62,830

Transitional
Housing
Contract No.
03-20004

$

397,463
226,405

623,368

46,758

103,000
474,110

623,868
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RESOURCES FOR HUMAN DEVELOPMENT, INC.
STATEMENT OF PROGRAM EXPENDITURES AND PROGRAM REVENUE
AACO AWARD NUMBER C2068
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2003

Expenditures:
Personnel:
Salaries
Fringe benefits

Total personnel expenditures

Operating:
Occupancy
Communications
Education/Program supplies
Printing
Other

Total operating expenditures

Equipment:
Lease/rental

Total equipment expenditures

Total direct expenditures
Administration

Total expenditures

Program revenue

Net AACO funded expenditures

53

5 12,496
2,420

14,916

1,482
107
855
455

2,899

243

243

18,058

1,661

19,719

$ 19,719




RESOURCES FOR HUMAN DEVELOPMENT, INC.
STATEMENT OF PROGRAM EXPENDITURES AND PROGRAM REVENUE

AACO AWARD NUMBER C2070
YEAR ENDED JUNE 39, 2003

Expenditures:
Personnel:
Salaries
Fringe benefits

Total personnel expenditures
Operating:

Occupancy
Communications
Education/Program supplies
Printing
Other

Total operating expenditures

Equipment:
[ease/rental

Total equipment expenditures

Total direct expenditures
Administration

Total expenditures

Program revenue

Net AACO funded expenditures

54

8,083
1,659

10,242

1,482
85
581
365
1,060

3,573

243

243

14,058

1,293

15,351

15,351




RESOURCES FOR HUMAN DEVELOPMENT, INC.
STATEMENT OF PROGRAM EXPENDITURES AND PROGRAM REVENUE
AACO AWARD NUMBER C2071
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2003

Expenditures:
Personnel:
Salaries
Fringe benefits

Total personnel expenditures
Operating:
Occupancy
Communications
Education/Program supplies
Printing
Other

Total operating expenditures

Equipment:
Lease/rental

Total equipment expenditures

Total direct expenditures
Administration

Total expenditures

Program revenue

Net AACO funded expenditures

3

8,253
1,598

9,851

1,481
107
643
487

750

3,468

243

243
13,562

1,246

14,808

$ 14,308




RESOURCES FOR HUMAN DEVELOPMENT, INC.
STATEMENT OF PROGRAM EXPENDITURES AND PROGRAM REVENUE
AACO AWARD NUMBER C2072
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2003

Expenditures:
Personnel:

Salanes
Fringe benefits

Total personnel expenditures

Operating:
Occupancy
Communications
Education/Program supplies
Printing
Other

Total operating expenditures

Equipment:
Lease/rental

Total equipment expenditures

Total direct expenditures
Administration

Total expenditures

Program revenue

Net AACO funded expenditures

56

5,446
902

6,348

1,482
107
1,097
487
1,229

4,402

243

243

10,993

1,010

12,003

12,003




RESOURCES FOR HUMAN DEVELOPMENT, INC.
STATEMENT OF PROGRAM EXPENDITURES AND PROGRAM REVENUE
AACO AWARD NUMBER C3068
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2003

Expenditures:
Personnel:
Salaries
Fringe benefits

Total personnel expenditures

Operating:
Occupancy
Communications
Education/Program supplies
Printing
Other
Total operating expenditures
Equipment:
Lease/rental
Purchases
Total equipment expenditures
Total direct expenditures
Admimstration

Total expenditures

Program revenue

Net AACO funded expenditures

57

10,892
2,183

13,075

3,127
255

376
137

3,895

223
321

546

17,516

1,611

19,127

19,127




RESOURCES FOR HUMAN DEVELOPMENT, INC.
STATEMENT OF PROGRAM EXPENDITURES AND PROGRAM REVENUE
AACO AWARD NUMBER C3070
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2003

Expenditures:
Personnel:
Salaries
Fringe benefits

Total personnel expenditures
Operating;
Occupancy
Communications
Education/Program supplies
Printing
Other

Total operating expenditures
Equipment:
Lease/rental
Purchases
Total equipment expenditures
Total direct expenditures
Administration

Total expenditures

Program revenue

Net AACO funded expenditures

58

$

8,316

1,694

10,010

2,705
256
260
376
390

3,987

225
321

546

14,543

1,337

15,880

$

15,880




RESOURCES FOR HUMAN DEVELOPMENT, INC.
STATEMENT OF PROGRAM EXPENDITURES AND PROGRAM REVENUE
AACO AWARD NUMBER C3071
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2003

Expenditures:
Personnel:
Salaries
Fringe benefits

Total personnel expenditures

Operating:
Occupancy
Communications
Education/Program supplies
Printing
Other

Total operating expenditures
Equipment:

Lease/rental
Purchases

Total equipment expenditures

Total direct expenditures
Administration

Total expenditures

Program revenue

Net AACO funded expenditures

59

$ 8,991
1,829

10,320

1,923
255
257
376
436

3,247

225
321

346

14,613

1,344

15,957

5 15,957




RESOURCES FOR HUMAN DEVELOPMENT, INC.
STATEMENT OF PROGRAM EXPENDITURES AND PROGRAM REVENUE
AACO AWARD NUMBER C3072
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2003

Expenditures:
Personnel:
Salaries
Fringe benefits

Total personnel expenditures
Operating:
Occupancy

Communications
Education/Program supplies

Printing
Other
Total operating expenditures
Equipment:
L ease/rental
Purchases
Total equipment expenditures
Total direct expenditures
Administration

Total expenditures

Program revenue

Net AACO funded expenditures

60

7,680
1,550

9,230

381
255

497
375
419

1,927

225
321

546

11,703

1:076 _

12,779

12,779




19

8.6 - - - 43 STl 091 SPOOL) PIOY3SNOH]
(09t) ¥9€ ¥Z6 - - - €28 sotjddng uonelIqeyay
122 LS CL - - - Ze8v1 pooy
S91 99 - €L €7 - ¢ sa1[ddng [ea1pa
8S€°S LT0°T OLY'S 058°l YAy £EV9°T 8L9°1 sarddng 10mmdwo)/201310
£66°S 609°t 8rS'8 9L0°l $88°C #8L°9 4SS A’ SUOHEOIUNUNLIO))
CL8'T Skt 256 GLI £43 A PLY ] $1500) SulAo|/Buldaayasnol
6L1°T R4 €E1'T 69¢ [ELT 1€6'C £pS'S 301AJ8G-90URINSU]
£9Z°1 63 LTl 6C - 67 Tve SIUSU0)) 29 SUIP[Ing-2IUBINSU]
7601 69 68L 61T 86 LyY'E 0lEd SIS
197°01 AtAL L69°S 919°1 $88°C 708" 11 LETET Yy
E8L £61°C £9¢ £ LTST $9L°6 £E0°CE §991A13G 79 [FUUOSIAJ PaseyaIn ]
916 65T 909 €T 011 08L 847 juswidoaas JJuIS
T6V'8T 9S1°T1 LLO'TT 66L°C 19L°6 0S1°Z¢ T6E 1L S)JUIL/SIXE ],
6£6°911 AN 89566 C18°C1 OpSLS CEESpl 787°69C o8B 79 SALIE[ES
:sasuadxy
901861 000°011 T 000°SLT 00£°0¢ CTS8TI ZST91T IEC ThY SNUIAY [B10],
LETT - - - - - - (3uaI JUSI[D YD) swod] 131D
- $96°L8 000°SL1 67867 - 098°LLI - duipunyg weIdold
691°ob1 - - - - - - spund ANH
000°0S - - - - - - (weiSold NH) Hoddng funo)
- - - - 00T 708°0 169°T11 dAA [BISp34
- - - - - - 1119 JueID) Anued pood
- - - - - S11°9 - SNUAIY PaUIRIay SIea X 1oLl JO 9s[}
- CE0°TT - 1St - - - 15anbayf snudAIY paure)ay
- $ - $ - $ - g ST P01 $ CLY' ST $ 69¢°¢ze  $ yieaH [elolABySg
pue ‘.14 UON ‘UIRIA] 2181 - 9214195 10] 394
LANUAATY
(&) Smsnoy (qeysy [eI005) (S991A19G wea SISLI) SISLIN) SISLIO)
sAroddng SUOLIIUUO)) Lununuo))) UOKOB]SIIES AIQOIA auoydaja ], [BLU2PISY
(INH Ajunuio) AVO IDWINSUON)
€00Z ‘0€ ANNC AXANT AVIX

SHSNAJIXH ANV SHANTATYH 4O H'TNAHAHOS
JIW/HIW STLLNNOD DIId-HOANONW-NOHEYO
"INI "INAWJOTIATA NVIANH 404 SADUNOSHY




29

V/N V/IN VIN V/N 17°0T$ ST'9LS 8t 763 41vd LINN SSOYO (9)
V/N V/N VIN V/N 6€'7T$ 60°59% 1L°€9% 4LVd LINN LEN (9)
ViIN VIN VIN V/N 990 ¥ 81Z°¢ 6L0°C {THddIAOYd SON
$E0°CT oSy ANNIATY QINIVITI JOd LSENOTI
_ seozc 8 () $  osy $ C1EEE $  (Tr'en) "~ (zps'8e) | §  sasuadxe IaAo/(4apun) snuaaaa pue pieddng
SOP 861 $96°L8 100°6L1 058°6C 01256 9LE SHT CL8 6LY sosuadxy [e1o L
699 L66'L 606'G1 F1L°T 969'R LOETT GT9°Cy PESYISAQ) SANRISTUILIDY
9£L°C61 896°6. 260°6S1 9E1°LT r$So8 690°€ZT RFT'OEY sasuadxy 300M(] [€I0],
C6L9 916t CYE'9 - LELT - €65'E VUBINSU] I[ITY3 A JOION
LS6T pLS ¢9T - £9L°C 007 14 4 asuadxqg oIy A JOION
61 68 865 9f 0t 058°1 LOT'] 3oURUUIE 29 Nedoy juswdmby
$69 - L81 6 £9¢ 91+ 6+9°1 aoueuuIR 29 Jleday Juipling
TLS £91 LS9 |8 44 4 4L 6 [lewg-s3uysiun,] pue juswdmby
ZOE'E CL91 082°C LLT'T T 23! 96 a31eT-sSurysiuun,f pue jusudmby
809°1 £e 186 8T L61 8¢1 €1T Sunerad() snosuR[[IISIA]
Sy - - - - - - uonienodsuei J, Juail))
83¢ 19¢ 0T SLTT ¢S9 €I Cro [oAR1Y JJEIS
:(panunjuos) sesuadxsg
(e) Buisnoy (qeyay 1e1008) (5901A15G wea ], SISLL) SISL) SISUD)
aaloddng SLEOID3UUC)) Aununuro.)) UuonoeJsies aT] Lalo) A3 auoydaro] |RIU2PISAY
(anyg AHUNuImIO.) AUVO ItUNSU0)
£007 ‘0 ANNC AAANT AVAA

(AANNILLNOD) SHSNAIXA ANV SHINTATE 40 A TNTAHDS
WIWHIN STLLNNOD MIId-AOUANON-NORIAVD
‘INI S INAINdOTHATA NYIANH 04 SADNN0STA




A

1IS1S
R
CTANS T
91Z'1
P69°TOLS
ZF'E
T AFAY
81Z°¢C
0ZZ'SEPS
6L0°S
s1e]j0g SON
|BI0L jBio],

98¢ STO'1S 91§ 196
6 61
0F691% 08¢LS tPees 9¢0¥S
L8 69¢€
281198 ZOS'cEY 611'61% CrP'618
LET'T ¢81°1
6E8°61% LEPTIS £E9°es FOR 9%
RL6'T o1
0Z0'1£2% 00T +0T$ 6vST6% 1S9°111%
969'C FRET
s1efjoqg SOnN ¢ 1810, $ Uoey $ dd4 SON
VIN-UON YIN-UON sIeljod VIA VYIA
£007 “0f AN AFANT AVHA
011 ST "ON ¥AdIAOHd
(SON) ADIAYAS 4O SLINM A0 T TNAAHDS
HW/HHI STALLNNOD MIIE-HOUNOW-NOTH VYD
"INI ‘INTFINJOTAATA NVINNH H0Jd SADNN0STH

()

(1)

(1

(1)

(1)

‘21E1S 2 Aq 325 e paysyqelsy (1)

C6 LSS

00°0T3

10°DES

L0013

69°¢RE

:31e1 PYSIqTIsH
s1SU) IO [P

:a1e1 poysIqeIsH
SISHLO) 3[1QOI [BPIAIPY]

3182 paystgeIsy
SISLID) SO WEaL

el paysIqeIsy
g1y auoydapay,

:apel paystqelss
SIS [EUSPISIY

201al0G Jo odA]




pOS'SILIT §  OLO'IP §  OSTTIl & OES'CTS1 §  SiSE6 0§ €SL0L 0§ 90EWBL 5 ObEOME § L6PE6S'9 § [6ITITT § FANTIATI WVADOUd TY.LOL
£P0°L9T°E #RS8T 6E1 LBO'¥RT LIV'E 968°11 - (126'6) 0S0'8S8°T 16L°06 UonEpIElaY [BIUSA [2101qNS
9771 - - - - - - - - 9zT'Tl LOTUS)9Y 29 JUSUNIUIIFY
16406 - - - - - - - - 16206 $201A198 poddng Arwey
6L0°F1 - - 6L0'F1 - - - - - - SOLUSTPU] UOLIS[A] JomMO]
pSE0LR ILL'LT 6t1 BLV'ETI - 968°1 1 - - 0LO°L89 - Bunies], [euonEd0A W1
618°1€€°T €180 - 0ES 951 Lip'e - - (126'6) 086°0L1°T - SSY
uonepIerey [BWIN
65L'T66°C 19.°8 L6 T0L'vT9 846’1 (6E°1) 6£€'S9L 760°0S€ $78'978 pIS'SIY 1OYOI[Y 23 ST [R10MGNS
896°68€ £r3 TSt L98'S - - LTYREE - #16°1€ COV'TI asnoH AJrue
65L°99¢ $00°L 08 9E6'E - - ZL€S¢E - RI0T - 30ed QUBIO M
19¢'TL - - - - - - - - [9%'ZL Jejeuai jeydsoH 0RUOIA
860°FE0°1 1z - 300°L8F - (76£°1) - - £OF 8BS - 1)) suopeyiely D
F19°'161 $78 001 LLE Y (1) - LSE'TE - (6£5) 6LS LTI IACID MOYIM - DId
600'6Z - - L6081 (0£8) - S6b T10°01 CET'I - SISPUIY () [enXa§ - DId
600°€12 - - - - - - - - 600'€1T juawadeue|y ase) Y - DId
- - - - - - - - - - pasoudel Ajjend - JId
09599 - - 0Z - - - Ors'1Z 000°St - Amunue) - DId
085'€9 - - 005 - - - - 080°¢9 - JSVY.L v¥d - JId
8£9°0TI 1Z - TIPS (889) - ¥EZ9 00006 65901 - umoisned - Jid
£88°LED Ly OFS 001°6¢ RO1°¢ - PEE'EE 0vS‘8TT P6OE1 1 - yuageding v¥q - DId
STE - - - - - - - ST1% - 30UE)SISSY JUIPMS - SOW'T
$$0'9 - - CRE £FE - 11§ - D[8Y - ywaneding yd - SOW'T
[ogoory 7 dru(]
Z0L8SF'S STL'E 611°111 LPL919 01226 152 L96°81 LI TTY606°'T 988°C0L’1 PiesH [BUsjy [eI0Iqng
879'¢t - - - - - - - - 870 EL uoyUNISY 2 JUSUNININY
#E0'9 - - - - - - - - FE0'9 sanialeq poddng Anwe
190°9C1 - 1Z8°SL <9 - - - CLI - 000°05 wmaduon)
[9Z'8Z6°1 - - 60169 - - - - - ZSLH6SH'T SUOTIN[OSY SANISO]
69¢°LOT°] CTL'E - 8ZC16 - - - - QLETIO'T - suond(y mapN
CIL'R1¥ - 001 S0E°GL - . - - 016'TPE - Sundspam
RPT¥LY - - C6L°E81 - - - - ESH 069 - SUOUERINO M3N
el - - 68926 - - - - £SE089 - ADURSSTEUAY
000°9¥ - - - - - - - 0009V - IXUOY) UI SHUBINSUOD)
065°LE - - - - - - - 065°LE - DSV.L HW - DId
0L8°IT - - - - - - - - 0LB°IZ 3DUEYSISSY JWApm§ - SON'T
¥RT'98¢ $ - § ®61Se  §  9SHHOI 0§ 01TT6 0§ 1IST $ L9681 $ - $ - $  TOTsEl % yuaneding HIN - SO'T
YireaH eIy
rweifolg
INUIAIY BLlooUg S H R e | coR L) JOUBINISU] eIT/0) A0ULISISSY DPO <A putt,j 3014
e ] ISTIA] frili:sly) /a3 doag SYeAlL] YD) [BIP2JAL ONUON OO OUOIA
£00T ‘0t ANNC CHANT HVIA

SIVID0Ud GAANNA ALNNOD AYANOOLNOKN -~ AINODNI 10 INAWALVILS
*ONI JINANJOTIATA NVIANH 304 SADYN0OSTY

¢ & ¢ ® (™) (] ® ® & & ®



¢9

JUSUIRISE j0enuod oy ul pascidde se junowe s1 jiun Jad a3ey (1)

- ¢ OI8I9c §  IP199c §  9ISI9Ef § 687 [e10]
o VN STER R OSTIA - o
- ¢  9I819¢ $ O18°19¢ §  9IRI9€ §  OIT $  687°¢ soedsuewlio p
- ¢  900°€8E $ 806°63¢ $  900°€8€ $ 6597 [e10].
- YN 796°9 V/N OSTI -
: - . . 9 8 -
- LT9°QEE LT98EE LT798€E 44! $ CRE'T
- $ 6LEYY  $ 6LEVY  $ 6LEVY  $ 291 ¢ Vi UMOISILION] - aSNOH ATiure,
IOUISTII(] S2OIAIS 201108 TO0IAIRS-I0] (1)) pauodar ) WeIZ01]
I0]-99} 10J-39]J -93]-1810) 12d DO1AIAG
pa[liq jelo],  paypneelol  psuodoy ey Jo syup)
€007 ‘0 ANNC AAANT AVAA

HOTAYAS 40 SLINN NVEAD0dd 4O A'TNAIAHOIS
HIVASNVIAOM ANV HSNOH A TINVA
"DNI "INTNdOTIATA NVIANH 04 STDOUNOSAA




95

£8F - 0EZ°T €12°C - LTIy SPOOL) P[OYasnoy
- - 6€T €T - 98¥ uonRaIIY
769V - SEQ 8LL - P0S'T safrddng uoneIfIqeydRy
1S¥'E - bSE'S FR0'Y - Z19°01 pooq
LEL - - - - - 3unpor)
$L9°E - - - - L1E SHOTIRSIPOW
vLT IST o11 LIZ - ZSL sarjddng esipepy
- 6£5°9 160°T 8661 - 60S' sarpddng somduro)/e01I0
- €6C°LT OLY'E 916'¢ - 609'6 SIONEIUNILITI0))
LEVT 122 CTE'T Z19°¢ - LES'E 3urdoayosnoH
- *rd B9 19L°C [9L'T - 00L'0 IDIAIIG-OUBINSU]
- LS 197 191 - 6LE SJUSIUO))~IITRINSU]
- 622 vLE'T TANS - 198G senIIN
'8 01008 €FO°L [+9°9 - 6668 JIY
- - - - 7£6'6C - IDRIYIAS] NF-UQ
- [ZZ'801 91¢'s 0SH'¥ - Z96°CI SI0JATRG 2P [QUUOSIA] paseyding
- 8001 68 9T - 906 Juauidoaaa(g Jrs
- 650°16 981°6T 991'97 L9L £9Z°61 sjyouay 1910
- 700'8Y PEE01 SiP'IT 8ZS'I ZS1'%e ALnoag rPog
- [+8'019 PSEVEL Q9T'SPI 08661 0TT80¢ sedep 7y SelIe[eg
:sasuadxy]

OSEH0T 61S°ZST ZLROPT 11692 vLy8S £88°9€T INUSAIY [RIO]

9SE 0T 052 9€L'€1T P6L'PET - 695"t 3urpuny weidolq
- 0946'T - C/E - - SNOJUB[[FOSTIA] "{PUOWIY) PUNJY MOIOSH WO IO
= - - Filrd - ._whm.m. JMNUIAZY ﬁu_.__.,muu.m nmhmu;.ﬂ .EE ..E 28 D
- OLE' P 678'9 6280 - LOE'S INUIAIY paumy Iof 1sonboy
- - 079¢] [#6'C1 - - preog ‘wooy
- - [89'9 €ET'L - §TOP1 UONUNY PUER JUSUNTIINY
- $ LY6' YY1 $ - $ - $ piv'8S § 800°00C § InUAY S

LESADY
mﬁnm..m LIOVAT PROY suspaLLy PROY puoiuy SIOIAIIG ISNOH
3[qIX] sduudg adoy sduudg sdoy 1aneding adoy
asnoj] adoy
€007 ‘0€ ANNT THANT IVAX

SASNHdXH ANV SHANIATY 40 A'INATHIS
~ SAVEDOUd HA AINNOD NOLAWVHLION
"INI ‘INFNJOTIAAA NVINNH J0J1 SHDOINOSTA




L9

S~ — S

e ==

~ . § otr $ 689 § 6289 § - § l0e8  § aM3A21 PaUTEaI 10§ Jsenboy
G99'[ $ O61c20D)  § {(9£89) $ (Z€8'9) $ - g (128630 $ sasuadxa (Jopun)/1aa0 onusaas pue woddng
169°201 SIL'SLT'I 9EQ'PET T8T95T AL #0L'9ZS sasuadxg @0l
- 6L8°CZ1 0Ot PT £69'97 ¢oT’9 QLE'PS PEIYIDAQ) SANENSIUIUPY
169°70T 9£8'610'1 9/9°607 £8S°6CC 60C°CS BTEC'TLY sosuadxg 10 [e0L
- 092 £61°C LOT'E - TTT'E IOURINSU] 2[OIY2A J0IOA
- CTY'y 50S OSY - b6 sarddngysiieday S[onjaA JOIOWN
- 1+8'C LLQ'Y AR - [E0°T asuadxy 201y JOOW
- b1 CES 167 - 109°T $30enuol) "WERK % Jredey Juswdmby
- 6F¢ LST SAIES - £98°C dreuNUIR % Heday Sup[mng
89 66°T 0tL €+ - 1STE [[ewg-sFunsiun, pue juaurdnbg
- £+9°9 cq SR - 060'C o8re1-sgunysum, pue uamdmby
- 6TLT - - - - [ENUIPISTY PosEYIng
009 686 £87 €1T - £irp dunerad() SNOQUB][AOSTIA
- 887 6Z LY - 122 AreIqr]
COE‘T - - - - - woneyrodsuel] U
- 991°ZS 59 185 - 119 [9AR1], JJeIS
| :(panunuos) sasuadxy
m_u_._:m LOVA] PEOY mcuﬁutm peoy ﬁmGE_ﬁ. wuu_}._ﬂm JISnNOH
IqIXAI sduudg adoy sguudg adoy juaneding adolg
asnoy 2dol
€007 ‘0€ INNT AAANT dVIA
(@ANNILNOD) SASNAJIXHT ANV SHNNFIATH 40 T INATHDS
SINVIO0dd HW AILNNOD NOLJANVHILION
"ONI ‘INTINJOTIATA NVINNH 10 SEDAN0STA
L ¢ | @ ¢ & $




RESOURCES FOR HUMAN DEVELOPMENT, INC.
NORTHAMPTON COUNTY MR PROGRAMS
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2003
__On Our Way

Revenue:
Northampton County MR $ 446,698
Children & Youth 130,456
Room, Board 797
Retained Revenue Request _ 110
Total Revenue 578,061

Expenses:
Salaries & Wages 322,993
Sacial Security 24,709
Other Benefits 33,020
Staff Development 4,075
Purchased Personnel & Services 3,867
Rent 23,565
Utilities 3,975
Insurance-Building & Contents 40
Housekeeping 3,732
Communications 4078
Office/Computer Supplies 1,041
Computer Services 35
Copy Machine Lease 185
Medical Supplies 813
Food 7.085
Rehabilitation Supples 6,478
Recreation 381
Household Goods 15,918
Staff Travel 1,562
Library 6
Miscellaneous Operating 488
Equipment and Furnishings-Large 317
Equipment and Furnishings-Small 21,168
Building Repair & Maintenance 8,522
Equipment Repair & Maint. Contracts 361
Motor Vehicle Lease/Purchase 2,956
Motor Vehicle Expense 1,318
Motor Vehicle Repairs/Supplies 748
Motor Vehicle Insurance _ 392
Total Direct Expenses 516,028
Administrative Overhead 61,923
Total Expenses 277,951
Support and revenue over/(under) expenses $ 110

Request for retained revenue
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SHECHTMAN, MARKS, DEVOR
& ETSKOVITZ, P.C.

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
ON COMPLIANCE AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING
STANDARDS

Board of Directors and Officers
Resources for Human Development, Inc.

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Resources for Human Development, Inc. and
subsidiaries (the Organization) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2003, and have issued our report
thereon dated January 19, 2004. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted i the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits
contained 1 Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States,

Comphance

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Organization's consolidated financial
statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grants, noncompliance with which could have a direct and
maierial effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on
compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not
express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance that are
required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the Organization's internal control over financial
reporting in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on
the consolidated financial statements and not to provide assurance on the internal contro! over financial
reporting. However, we noted a certain matter involving the internal control over financial reporting
and its operation that we consider a reportable condition. Reportable conditions involve matters coming
to our attemtion relating to significant deficiencies in the design or operation of the internal control over
financial reporting that, in our judgement, could adversely affect the Organization's ability to record,
process, summarize, and report financial data consistent with the assertions of management in the
consolidated financial statements. The reportable condition is described in the accompanying schedule
of findings and questioned costs as item 03-1.
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A material weakness is a condition in which the design of operation of one or more of the internal
control components does not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that misstatements in amounts that
would be material in relation to the consolidated financial statements being audited may occur and not
be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions. Our consideration of the internal control over financial reporting would not necessarily
disclose all matters in the internal control that might be reportable conditions and, accordingly, would
not necessarily disclose all reportable conditions that are also considered to be material weaknesses.
However, we believe that the reportable condition described above is not a material weakness. We also
noted other matters involving the internal control over financial reporting, which we have reported to
management of the Organization in a separate letter dated January 19, 2004.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Board of Directors, management and
various federal and state funding agencies, pass-through entities, City of Philadelphia, and the
Department of Public Health and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than
these specified parties. Under Louisiana Revised Statute 24:513, this report is distributed by the
Legislative Auditor as a public document.

Philadelphia, PA
January 19, 2004
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SHECHTMAN, MARKS, DEVOR

& ETSKOVITL, P.C.
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS
APPLICABLE TO EACH MAJOR PROGRAM
AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE
IN ACCORDANCE WITH OMB CIRCULAR A-133

Board of Directors and Officers
Resources for Human Development, Inc.

Compliance

We have audited the compliance of Resources for Human Development, Inc. (the Organization) with
the types of compliance requirements described in the U. S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB)
Circular A-133 Compliance Supplemenr that are applicable to each of its major Federal programs for
the year ended June 30, 2003. The Organization's major Federal programs are identified in the
summary of. auditor's results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.
Compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to each of its
major Federal programs 1s the responsibility of the Organization's management. Our responsibility is
to express an opinion on the Organization's compliance based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of
States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations and the City of Philadelphia Subrecipient
Audit Guide. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 and the City of Philadelphia Subrecipient
Audit Guide require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and
material effect on a major Federal program occurred. An audit includes exammning, on a test basis,
evidence about the Organization's compliance with those requirements and performing such other
procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit does not provide a legal determination of the
Organization's compliance with those requirements.

In our opinion, the Organization complied, 1n all material respects, with the requirements referred to
above that are applicable to each of its major Federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2003.
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Internal Control Over Compliance

The management of the Organization is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal
control over compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to
federal programs. In planning and performing our audit, we constdered the Organization's internal
control over compliance with requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major
federal program in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our
opinion on compliance and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with
OMB Circular A-133 and the City of Philadelphia Subrecipient Audit Guide.

We noted certain matters involving the internal control over compliance and s operation that we
consider to be reportable conditions. Reportable conditions involve matters coming to our attention
relating to significant deficiencies in the design or operation of the internal control over compliance
that, in our judgement, could adversely affect the Organization’s ability to administer a major federal
program in accordance with the applicable requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants.

Reportable conditions are described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as
items 03-02 to 03-5.

A material weakness is a condition in which the design or operation of one or more of the internal
control components does not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that noncompliance with applicable
requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants that would be material in relation to a major
federal program being audited may occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in
the normal course of performing their assigned functions. QOur consideration of the internal control
over compliance would not necessarily disclose all matters in the internal control that might be
reportable conditions and, accordingly, would not necessarily disclose all reportable conditions that are
also considered to be material weaknesses. However, we believe none of the reportable conditions
described above is a material weakness.

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal, State and City Awards

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Resources for Human Development, Inc. and
subsidiaries as of and for the year ended June 30, 2003, and have issued our report thereon dated
January 19, 2004. Our audit was performed for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic
consolidated financial statements taken as a whole. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of
Federal, state and city awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by OMB
Circular A-133 and the City of Philadelphia Subrecipient Audit Guide and is not a required part of the
basic consolidated financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures
applied in the audit of the basic consolidated financial statements and, 1n our opinion, 1s fairly stated, in
all material respects, in relation to the basic consolidated financial statements taken as a whole.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Board of Directors, management and
various Federal and state funding agencies, pass-through entities, City of Philadelphia, and the
Department of Public Health and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than
these specified parties. Under Louisiana Revised Statute 24:313, this report is distributed by the
Legislative Auditor as a public document.

Yeektrean M%f%i, .
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RESOURCES FOR HUMAN DEVELOPMENT, INC.
NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF
FEDERAL, STATE AND CITY AWARDS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2003

General information

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal, state and city awards presents activities
in all federal, state and city award programs of Resources for Human Development, Inc. All
financial assistance received directly from federal agencies, as well as financial assistance
passed through other governmental agencies or not-for-profit organizations, is included on the
schedule.

Basis of accounting

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal, state and city awards is presented using
the accrual basis of accounting. The amounts reported in this schedule as expenditures may
differ from certain financial reports submitted to funding agencies because those reports may be
submitted on either a cash or modified cash basis of accounting.

Relationship to basic consolidated financial statements

Federal, state and city award expenditures are reported on the statement of functional
expenditures as program costs. However, expenditures in the schedule of expenditures of
federal, state and city awards for certain programs which have incurred deficits have been
limited to the related contracted amount. In addition, for certain programs, the expenditures
reported in the basic consolidated financial statements may differ from the expenditures
reported in the schedule of expenditures of federal, state and city awards due to program
expenditures exceeding grant or contract budget limitations which are not included as federal,
state and city financial assistance.
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RESOURCES FOR HUMAN DEVELOPMENT, INC.
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

Section | - Summary of Auditors' Results

Financial Statements

Type of auditors' report issued: Unqualified

Internat control over financial reporting:
Material weakness(es) identified?

Reportable condition(s) 1dentified not considered

to be material weakness(es) reported

Noncompliance material to financial statements noted?

Federal Awards

Internal control over major programs:
Material weakness{es) identified?

Reportable condition(s) 1dentified not considered

to be material weakness(es) reported

Type of auditors’ report issued on compliance for

major programs: Unqualified

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to
be reported in accordance with Circular A-133,
Section .510(a)?

Qualification of major programs:
CFDA Number(s)

14.235

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2003
yes
X yes
yes
yes
X yes
X yes

Supportive Housing Program _

Name of Federal Program or Cluster

93.558
93.671

Temporary Assistance for Needy Families (TANF)

no

nonc

1o

no

none

no

Family Violence Prevention and Services/Grants for Battered Women's Shelters

93.778

Medical assistance Prngram

93.959

Block Grants for Prevention and Treatment:f Substa_l}cg_ Abl_lse

Dollar threshold used to distinguish
between Type A and Type B programs:

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee

$617.914

89

yes

no




RESOURCES FOR HUMAN DEVELOPMENT, INC.
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONTINUED)
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2003

Section II - Financial Statement Findings

03-1

Payroll

Condition: The number of total hours worked per day on employee time sheets were
not computed correctly in a number of instances. This condition was also a finding in

the prior year audit.

Criteria: The Organization requires all unit directors to re-compute and approve
employee time sheets prior to submission to the payroll department for processing.

Effect: Because employee time sheets are not consistently re-computed accurately
before payrolls are processed, inaccuracies and possible disallowed payroll costs may

OCCUr.

Cause of condition: Procedures are in place for supervisory personnel to re-compute
all time sheets. Apparently, this procedure 1s not applied consistently.

Recommendation: The Organization needs to ensure that this procedure 1s followed
consistently by all units. Periodic inspections of time sheets and time summaries should
be made through the internal audit function to confirm that there is adherence to the

procedure.
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RESOURCES FOR HUMAN DEVELOPMENT, INC.
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONTINUED)
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2003

Section III - Federal Awards and Questioned Costs
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
03-2 Medical Assistance Program - CFDA No. 93.778 - Year ended June 30, 2003

Reportable condition: The reportable condition at Finding 03-1 also applies to
this program.

03-3 Supportive Housing Program - CFDA No. 14.235 - Year ended June 30, 2003

Reportable condition: The reportable condition at Finding 03-1 also applies to
this program,

03-4 Temporary Assistance for Needy Families (TANF) - CFDA No. 93.558 -
Year ended June 30, 2003

Reportable condition: The reportable condition at Finding 03-1 also applies to
the program.,

03-5 Block Grant for Prevention and Treatment of Substance Abuse - CFDA No.
03.959 ~ Year ended June 30, 2003

Reportable condition: The reportable condition at Finding 03-1 also applies to
the program,
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RESOURCES
HUMAN DE‘EE?(EPMENT. | NC.

January 19, 2004

Department of Health and Human Services

® Resources for Human Development, Inc. respectfully submits the following corrective action
plan for the year ended June 30, 2003.

Name and address of independent accounting firm: Shechtman, Marks, Devor & Etskovitz, P.C,
- 2000 Market Street - Suite 500 - Philadelphia, Pa. 19103.

Audit period; Year ended June 30, 2003,

The findings from the June 30, 2003 schedule of {findings and questioned costs are discussed
below. The findings are numbered consistently with the numbers assigned in the schedule.

Findings - Financial Statement Audit.
Reportable Conditions

03-1 Payroll

Recommendation: The organization needs to ensure that there 1s consistent compliance
with i1t’s procedure requiring supervisory personnel to recompute the total number of
hours worked per day on employee time sheets prior to submission to the payroll
department on a consistent basis by all units. Periodic inspection of time sheets and time

® summaries should be made through the internal audit function to confirm that there is
adherence to the procedure.,

Action Taken: We concur with the recommendation. Our internal auditors will continue
their audits throughout the current fiscal year. In addition RHD is currently automating

® the time collection process which will eliminate the computation errors in the total
number of hours worked per day. We anticipate the tmplementation of this automated
process will be completed by June 30, 2004,

Findings - Federal Award Programs Audit

Department of Health and Human Services

92

4700 WISSAHICKON AVENUE - SUITE 126 » PHILADELPHIA, PA 19144-4248 + 215-951-0300 - FAX 215-951-0312 - WWW.RHD.ORG



03-2 Medical Assistance Program - CFDA No. 93.778

Reportable Condition: See Finding 03-1.
(03-3 Supportive Housing Program - CFDA No. 14.235
Reportable Condition - See Finding 03-1.

03-4 Temporary Assistance for Needy Families (TANF) - CFDA No. 93.558
Reportable Condition - See Finding 03-1.
03-5 Block Grant for Prevention and Treatment of Substance abuse - CFDA No. 93.959
Reportable Condition - See Finding 03-1.

[f the Department of Health and Human Services has any questions regarding this plan, please
call Mary Loomis, Chief Financial Officer at 215-951-0300.

Sincerely yours,
';I ':‘." 'L,:._j

Lovor
Mary Loomis

Chief Financial Officer
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RESOURCES FOR HUMAN DEVELOPMENT, INC.
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDING
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2003

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

Finding 02-2 Medical Assistance Program - CFDA No. 93.778

Condition:

Recommendation:

Current status:

This finding was a reportable condition stating that the number of total
hours worked per day on employee time sheets were not computed
correctly in a number of instances.

The auditor recommended that the Organization monitor the procedure
that supervisory personnel recompute all time sheets. In addition,
periodic inspections of time sheets and time summaries should be made
through the internal audit function.

The Organization’s internal auditors continue to inspect times sheets and
time¢ summaries for accuracy. Any errors found are corrected and
additional training with individuals reviewing timesheets is completed.

In addition, the Organization is currently automating the time collection
process which will eliminate the human error in the total hours

computation. It’s expected that the implementation of this automated
process will be completed by June 2004,

Finding 02-3 Foster Care Title IV-E-CFDA No. 93.658

Condition:

Recommendation:

Current status:

This finding was a reportable condition stating that the number of total
hours worked per day on employee time sheets were not computed
correctly in a number of instances.

The auditor recommended that the Organization monitor the procedure
that supervisory personnel recompute all time sheets. In addition,

periodic inspections of time sheets and time summaries should be made
through the internal audit function.

The Organization’s mternal auditors continue to inspect times sheets and
time summaries for accuracy. Any errors found are corrected and
additional training with individuals reviewing timesheets is completed.

In addition, the Organization is currently automating the time collection
process which will eliminate the human error in the total hours
computation. It’s expected that the implementation of this automated
process will be completed by June 2004.
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SHECHTMAN, MARKS, DEYOR

& ETSKOVITZ, P.C.
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

3 Tt
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B ¢ 3

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
ON COST ALLOCATION PLAN

Board of Directors and Officers
Resources for Human Development, Inc.

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Resources for Human Development, Inc. and

subsidiaries (the Organization) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2003, and have issued our report
thereon dated January 19, 2004.

As part of our audit, we audited the method used by the Orgamzation to allocate indirect costs as
reflected 1 the City of Philadelphia, Department of Public Health, Office of Mental Heaith and Mental
Retardation program activity invoice summary as required by the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania,
Department of Public Welfare, Section 4300.94 of the Title 4300 Regulations.

The Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, Department of Public Welfare, Section 4300.94 of the Title 4300
Regulations states that "the overall objective of the allocation process is to distribute the indirect costs
of the agency to its various services or cost categories in reasonable proportion with the benefits
provided to these services or cost categories.” The regulations require that the method used "shall
result in a fair and equitable distribution of costs and shall be in direct relation to actual benefits
accruing to the services to which costs are charged”.

The method of allocating costs for the year ended June 30, 2003 was based on various formulas which
allocate costs depending on the nature of the individual costs.

In our opinion, the cost allocation plan of the Organization results in a distribution of indirect costs, as
reflected in the City of Philadelphia, Department of Public Health, Office of Mental Health and Mental
Retardattion program activity invoice summary for the year ended June 30, 2003 in accordance with
Section 4300.94 of the Title 4300 Regulations i1ssued by the Commonwealth of Pennsylvama,
Department of Public Welfare.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Board of Directors, management and
the City of Philadelphia, Department of Public Health and 15 not intended to be and should not be used
by anyone other than these specified parties.

Philadelphia, PA
January 19, 2004
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SHECHTMAN, MARKS, DEVOR

& ETSKOVITL, P.C.
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS ON COST
ALLOCATION PLAN FOR THE UPCOMING BUDGET YEAR

Board of Directors and Officers
Resources for Human Development, Inc.

At your request we have performed the procedures enumerated below with respect to the administrative
costs distribution included in the Line Item Budget for the year ending June 30, 2004 submitted by
Resources for Human Development, Inc. (“the Organization”) to the City of Philadelphia, Department

of Health. Our review was made solely to assist you in your filing requirements with the City of
Philadelphia, Department of Public Health.

The procedures we performed are summafized as follows:

a. We reviewed a schedule contained within the 2004 Line Item Budget which reflected the
allocatton factors utilized in distributing administrative costs. -

b. We confirmed our understanding of the method of allocating administrative costs
through a review of supporting work papers and by discussions with management
responsible for allocation factors.

C. We compared the Organization’s method of allocating costs to those requirements as
specified in Section 4300.94 of the Title 4300 Regulations Related Methods for
Allocating Indirect Costs in order to determine whether the cost allocation is in
compliance with those regulations.

- d. We compared the allocation methods used between the current fiscal year and prior
fiscal year to determine consistency between years. The cost allocation method is based
on various formulas which allocate costs depending on the nature of the individual costs.

The Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, Department of Public Welfare, Section 4300.94 of Title 4300
Regulations state “The overall objective of the allocation process 18 to distribute the indirect costs of the
Agency to 1ts various services or cost categories in reasonable proportion with the benefits provided to
these services or cost categories.” The Regulations require that the method used result in a fair and

equitable distribution of costs which shall be in direct relation to actual benefits accruing to the services
to which costs are charged.
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Because the above procedures do not constitute an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing
standards, we do not express an opinion on the amount of admimstrative costs distributed to the City
nor on any other amounts contained within the June 30, 2004 budget submitted to the City of
Philadelpma, Department of Public Health. Had we performed additional procedures or had we
conducted an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, other matters might have
come to our attention that would have been reported to you. This report relates only to the items
specified above and does not extend to any financial statements of the Organization taken as a whole.

Philadelphia, PA M"ﬁ M M; %7 /’%.

January 19, 2004
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June 30, 2003
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SHECHTMAN, MARKS, DEVOR

& ETSKOVITLZ, P.C.
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

January 19, 2004

Board of Directors
Resources for Human Development

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements for Resources for
Human Development, Inc. and Subsidiaries (RHD) as of June 30, 2003, we issued two
reports, which addressed internal controls. The reports are Report of independent
certified public accountants on compliance and on internal control over financial
reporting based on an audit of financial statements in accordance with Government
Auditing Standards and Report of independent certified public accountants on
compliance with requirements applicable to each major program and internal control
over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133. In addition, we noted certain
matters that we believe you should consider. Our observations were formed as a by-
product of our auditing procedures, which did not include a comprehensive review for the
purpose of submitting detailed recommendations.

The following summarizes our comments and suggestions.

Comments for June 30, 2003

Pavroll — Calculation of Hours Worked

At each unit, hourly workers manually record their start-time and end-time and record the
total time worked each day. In our audit, we found numerous cases in which hours
worked were incorrectly calculated. The incorrectly calculated time was then entered
onto the units’ summary time sheets that were then transmitted to the central office for
payment. As a result, in those cases, hourly workers were not paid the proper amount.
The errors go in both directions, sometimes more hours were paid than actually worked
and at other times, fewer hours were paid than actually worked. The net dollar impact to
RHD was not significant, but the number of instances in which errors occurred was
significant. This problem has occurred repeatedly over the years.

We recommend that procedures continue to be improved or developed to prevent such
errors. We suggest that either the payroll department or internal audit function increase
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its mmspection of time sheets to identify errors. We are aware that management is
implementing a new software system to electronically gather data at the source and then
transmit it to the Central office. We encourage this change. However, until we can be
satistied that payroll accuracy has substantially improved; we recommend that RHD
management continue to closely monitor the quality of the information presented to the
payroll department.

Worker’s Compensation Insurance — Internal Administration

RHD maintains worker’s compensation policies in each state other than Pennsylvania in
which the Organization has employees. (Pennsylvania is administered as a self-insured
retention plan). The cost of the each policy is charged to the state programs that operate
wrthin each policy’s coverage. We noted during our fieldwork that an incorrect workers
compensation rate was bemg charged to programs, creating an underaccrual of workers
compensation insurance in certain programs. By not accruing the costs necessary to
cover the premiums, RHD is not able to charge the programs for the appropriate amount
of insurance costs.

Beginning in fiscal year 2004, RHD changed to a new insurance program which will
calculate workers compensation insurance on the organization as a whole. There will no
longer be separate policies for each state in which RHD operates.

We recommend that, on a quarterly basis, management review the charges to the
programs and compare them to the actual and anticipated cost of running and
administering the worker’s compensation plan. If the analysis indicates that either too
much or too little in premiums, relative to the actual cost of the plan, has been
accumulating, then a timely adjustment should be made to more closely reflect the actual
cost of insurance.

Outstanding Payroll and Vendor Checks

During our audit fieldwork, we noted that some of the bank accounts have old
outstanding payroll or vendor checks. The State of Pennsylvania requires that any vendor
checks remaining unclaimed more than five years after it became payable is presumed
abandoned and must be escheated to the State. In addition, any wages that have remained
unclaimed for more than three years after the wages became payable are presumed
abandoned and must also be escheated to the State.

We recommend that management make a reasonable attempt to locate the individuals or
companies to which the outstanding checks are addressed. If they are unable to locate,
we recommend that the checks be remitted to the State. '




Fixed assets Inventory

During our audit fieldwork, we met with management to obtain an understanding of the
physical inventory procedures performed during the fixed asset inventory and
management’s follow up on the results. We noted the following:

Physical counting of fixed asset inventories was not performed timely at year end.
They were completed a few months after year end. In addition, the listing of
assets sent to the programs were updated only through the third fiscal quarter, thus
the fixed assets module did not include assets acquired in the fourth quarter and
was therefore, not complete. Consequently, the inventory listings sent to the units
“were lacking accurate information. We found several discrepancies on fixed asset
inventories which could have been avoided had accurate information been
supplied to the programs.

- Certain funders require the Organization to conduct physical inventory counts of
fixed assets annually. In order to fully and timely comply, we recommend that
the fixed asset module be updated monthly for additions and deletions. To give
the units accurate and timely records of fixed assets, we recommend that physical
inventory accounts occur before year end, possibly May, based on the physical
inventory records as of the end of the Organization’s third quarter. Any fixed
assets on hand that are not on the asset list should be listed and identified and
reported back to headquarters for further investigation.

By conducting the physical count in May, the completion of the counting as well
as the reconciliation of differences at the corporate level can be timely achieved
by the end of the Organization’s fiscal year end.

In another fixed asset related matter, it came to our attention that certain fixed
assets under the control of the Central Office, were taken for personal use.
Despite the existence of a sign-out procedure for using Corporate fixed assets
outside of the office, the policy was not enforced. Although certain people in the
Organization were aware of the misappropriation of the fixed assets, no one felt
compelled to report this transgression from company policy to the proper
management authorities.

As a result of the last item, we recommend certain changes to the fixed asset
policy. First, all assets in the possession of the corporate otfice should be counted
annually. All discrepancies should be evaluated and reconciled on a timely basis.

Second, the sign-out log should be reviewed regularly, at least weekly, by an
- individual with no other fixed asset responsibility. Every item out of the office
should include an expected return date. Any assets not returned to the corporate
offices when promised, should be investigated by the person responsible for
keeping the log. |




Third, although there is a process at headquarters to allow employees to speak out
without fear of reprisal (Citizens’ Advocate Program), and report matters that
might arise that are not within the Organization’s Code of Conduct, it was not
used to report this particular matter. We recommend that management remind
employees about the process and encourage them to address matters of
improprety that are witnessed at any level of the Organization.

Timely Filing of Louisiana Audit Report

The State of Louistana requires audit reports to be submitted within six months of the end
of an organization’s fiscal year end. In the case of RHD, that filing deadline is December
31, 2003. Failure to file the audit reports by that date is considered by the State of
Louisiana a material instance of noncompliance.

Although Louisiana considers the filing of the audit report later than six months after an
organization’s year-end to be a reportable condition, most other agencies that fund RHD
do not. Accordingly, we are not reporting this event as a reportable condition on-an
organization-wide basis. Nevertheless, it is our strong recommendation that RHD do
everything in its power to close its accounting books in a timely manner and complete its
financial statements so that the filing of the annual audited financial statements be
completed prior to Louisiana’s and all other funders’ required due dates.

Corporate Accounﬁng System Computer Controls

The Organization’s accounting is recorded using Macola software. Due to the number of
users who feed information into the system, the magnitude of data and transactions that
are processed by the system, the reliance of users of financial data generated by the
system for both internal and external users, as well as the integration with other systems,
we reviewed the accounting controls surrounding the system. Our goal was to evaluate
whether there were opportunities that could potentially expose the system or the
Organization to problems. Overall, we found the controls and safeguards to be
reasonably strong. However, we noted certain matters that we feel should be brought to
the attention of management in order to avoid potential problems.

Password Policies

While passwords are required by users of the system and access to parts of the system are
Iimited to users based on their needs to access or process certain data, the password
setting policies do not comply with best practices. There is no minimum password
length. The system will not lock out a user who has failed to log onto the system after a
predetermined number of unsuccessful login attempts. This allows someone the
ultimately log onto the system by using brute force.




We recommend that standards be established for permissible passwords. This includes
specifying a minimum password length, at least 6 fo 8 characters. Passwords should be
changed on a regular basis, anywhere from 2 to 4 times per year. The system should lock
~ someone out from attempting to logon to the system after 3 failed logon attempts.

Disaster Recovery and Business Continuity Plan

Based on our discussions, there is no formal disaster recovery and business continuity
plan. In the event that a major catastrophe occurred to the headquarters building and the .
premises could not be used to operate the Organization, there is no formal plan as to
where, when or how the Organization would restart its operations. There is adequate
insurance in place to finance the cost of replacing hardware and software and other
tangible assets. Computer software and data are backed up both on CD’s and mirrored on
another computer at the Midvale location.

Through our discussions, we understand that management has discussed this matter and
developed certain contingency plans. However, due to the size of the Organization in
terms of both the number of people it employs and provides services to, we recommend
that a formal plan be documented to identify how the Organization would operate if the
headquarters and the equipment in it were not usable. This plan should determine the
amount of time the Organization could be un-operable. It should identify a location at
which 1t could restart operations as well as a source to replace computers needed for vital
operations. In addition, the plan should address the procedures necessary to fully restore
the programs and data that had been backed-up and stored offsite. The plan should be
more comprehensive than computer operations alone. It should address all programs and
policies necessary to get the Organization back into operations as soon as is practical.

Acceptable Use Procedures

There is a lack of formal policies and procedures addressing acceptable use of personal
software. It is not clear how the Organization feels about employees loading personal
software onto the Organization’s computers, using the computers to play games, use of
the internet for personal reasons, visiting websites that may not be considered appropriate
for the workplace, etc.

We recommend that policies be developed and communicated throughout the
Organization to address the issue of acceptable computer usage. Not only will everyone
in the Organization clearly understand management’s views on the topic, but it should
- reduce the chances for computer viruses to get into the Organization’s computer system.




Summary

While correcting each of the foregoing points will not prevent or preclude errors or illegal
acts from occurring, they will assist in improving record keeping, internal controls, and
the financial stability of RHD. If you would like to discuss any of the matters in greater

detail, please call us.

Very truly yours,

Shechtman, Marks, Devor & Etskovitz, P.C.



RESOURCES

FOR
HUMAN DEVELOPMENT, INC.

Resources for Human Development, Inc. (RHD) responses to the June 30, 2003
Memorandum of Advisory Comments.

Payroll — Calculation of Hours Worked

RHD has increased the size of its internal audit department in order to allow for a higher
time concentration and completion of the time sheet audits on a timely basis. In addition
we conducted trainings to communicate and reeducate the supervisors on the expected
recomputations of the daily hours worked prior to submission for payment. RHD has
invested in two softwares which allow for the scanning of employee timesheets and the
automation of the calculation of the daily hours worked and the total hours worked for
the payroll period. We anticipate the initial implementation of this process in February
2004 and the implementation of the entire corporation by June 2004, We believe this
implementation will eliminate or greatly reduce the error rate in the calculation of total
daily hours on the timesheets.

Worker’s Compensation Insurance — Internal Administration

We agree with the recommendation. We have also added a budget manager to the group
administering the self insurance program and believe this additional fiscal oversight will
allow for an accurate allocation of the cost of insurance to all of the programs.

Outstanding Payroll and Vendor checks

RHD has spent significant time during the year ended June 30, 2003 researching,
contacting individuals and vendors and reissuing checks for the stale outstanding checks.
We will submit the appropriate checks to the State.

Fixed asset inventory
RHD has two individuals who are responsible for analyzing and imputing capital asset
additions and deletions into the fixed asset module on a monthly basis. Our contracts

require an annual physical inventory. We have consistently done a corporate wide annual
mnventory with a March 31 cut off of activity, In this process we have requested any
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differences to be identified so that further investigation at the corporate office can be
completed. We will request completion of the physical inventory by the site supervisors
by the end of May based on the information sent to them. This process will continue to
have produce differences due to assets purchased in April and May.

RHD acknowledges there was an inappropriate use of a corporate asset for a period of
time. The identification of the inappropriate use of the corporate asset was brought to
management’s attention by staff members who worked under the supervision of the
individual. The management of RHD believe the employees did not fear reprisal by
surfacing this situation. We will have the an internal audit member periodically review
the corporate log for completeness and appropriateness.

Password policies

RHD agrees implement a policy to require passwords to have 6 characters and a
requirement to change the password twice a year. In addition we will implement a lock
out of an individual attempting to logon to the system after 3 failed logon attempts.

Disaster Recovery and Business Continuity Plan

RHD has spent many years to provide the necessary environment to enable us to recover
from a disaster in the corporate office building. This plan has included the daily removal
of the computer system backup tapes, the purchase and establishment of computer
hardware and mirroring of our software and data at another site owned, We have
identified that the business operations could be resumed in 24 hours. We will continue to
formally document our plan and include the suggested items.

Acceptable Use Procedures

RHD has not formally written an acceptable computer usage policy. We believe that it is
the supervisors’ responsibility to monitor the activities of their staff during work hours.
Management expects a full day of productivity from our staff and has assigned workloads
accordingly. RHD will continue to address the appropriate use of the computer during the
workday.




